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Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, RA.,

A Professional Assoctation of Certified Public Acconntants and Management Consnltants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the Board of Conumnissioners
Town of Nags Head

Nags Head, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund nformatien of the Town of Nags Head,
North Carolina as of and for the year ended Junc 30, 2008, which cellectively comprise the Town’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Town of Nags Head, North Carolina's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these basic financial statemnents based on our audit.

We conducled our andit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requive that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit ipcludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supperting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on cur audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the povemmental activitics, busincss-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Nags Ilead, North Carolina as
of June 30, 2008, the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appropriale, thereof,
and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and Capital Reserve Fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10,
2008 on our consideration of the Town of Nags Head's internal conirol over finangial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal contrel over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
prepared in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management reparding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion thereon,

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina taken as 3 whole, The individual fund financial statements and
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjceted to the
auditing procedures applicd in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our cpinion, are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Poities pnss) £ ovweintia, Cocts, 4.

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
Dctober 10, 2008




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Nags Head, we offer readers of our financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Nags Head for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, identify
changes in the Town’s financial condition, identify material deviations from the financial budget, and
identify individual fund issues or concerns.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the Town of Nags Head exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $34,515,865
(net assets}.

The Town’s net assets increased by $814,283 over the prior year. The governmental net assets increased
by $699,534 (+3.19%). The business-type net assets increased by $114,749 (+.98%).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$8,266,136 which is up by $1,406,303 (+20.50%) from the prior year. The increase is due primarily to
decreases in both Fund Balance Reserved for Encumbrances and Fund Balance Reserved for Restricted
assets related to capital purchases funded and encumbered in fiscal year 06/07 that were not completed
as of June 30, 2007, In the current fiscal year all major capital equipment purchases were complete as of
June 30, 2008, This unreserved fund balance represants 69.43% of tota] general fund expenditures for
the fiscal year up from 64.15% in the prior year.

The Town of Nags Head's total debt decreased by $948,043 (-14.67%) during the current fiscal year.

The General Fund budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was adopted with a tax rate of $.1475
per $100 assessed valuation reflecting no change from the prior year. Total assessed valuation increased
from $3,031,041,982 as of June 30, 2007 to $3,051,148,434 as of June 30, 2008 an increase of
$20,106,452 {4.66%).

General Fund budget amendments during fiscal year 2007-2008 increased the adopted budget by just over
$933,000 with individual increases (decreases) by functional area noted below:

* General Government decreased by $263,992 for reimbursements from the Water Fund for
administrative oversight through the allocation of indirect costs partially offset by increases for partial
year funding of the Deputy Manager as a full time salaried versus part time contracted position and
capital costs for engineering Phase II of the west side muiti use path project.

» Public Safety increased by $626,252 to fund capital purchases budgeted at the first year debt
payment amount inciuding replacemeant police vehicles and a replacement fire truck partialiy offset by
reductions In QOcean Rescue staffing for not contracting with the Nationa! Park Service to provide
ocean rescue services for the 2008 summer season.

» Environmental Protection increased by $478,969 due to capital purchases budgeted at the first year
debt payment amount.

»  Public Works increased by $92,005 due to capital purchases budgeted at the first year debt payment
amount and additional street capital projects approved and funded during the fiscal year partially
offset by reimbursements from the Water Fund for administrative oversight through the allocation of
indirect costs.

« There was no change to the amount budgeted for Contingency $125,000 due to no use for the fiscal
year in the General Fund,




Key Ratios

% Debt to General Governmental Expenses | | 44,36%
% Property Tax Collection 99.96%
% Increase in Assessed Property Valuation 65%

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an Introduction to the Town of Nags Head's basic
financial statements. The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views
of the Town: 1) Government-Wide Financlal Statements and 2) Fund Financial Statements. Both
perspectivas, however, are essential and complementary components that allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison, and enhance the Town's accountability. Another
element of the basic financial statements is the notes to the financial statements, In addition to the basic
financlal statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Nags Head. (See Figure 1}

Figure 1 — Required Components of Annual Financial Report

| |

Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Govarnment-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Statements Financial Statements Financial Statements .

A, Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement report both short-term and long-term information about the financial
condition of the Town as a whole, focusing on the government’s operational accountability. The
accounting methods of these statements reflect that of private sector companies in that all governmental
and business-type activities are consolidated into columns that add to a total for the primary government.
The statement of net assets reports the Town's net assets and includes all, both current and non-current,
assets and labilities of the government. The difference between the two is reported as net assets. Qver
time, increases or decreases in the Town's net assets are one indication of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. You will also need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in
the Town’s property tax tase, local economy and service levels, to assess the overall health of the Town.

On the other hand, the statement of activities reports how net assets have changed and includes all of the -

current year’s revenues and expenses regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the Town are divided into two categories;




Governmental Activities — Most of the Town's basic services are included here, such as police, fire,
environmental services, public works and general administration. Taxes and grants finance most of
these activities,

Business-Type Adtivities — the Town charges fees to customers to cover the costs of certain
services it provides. The Town’s water system is included. Also included here is the Town's one
blended component unit — Nags Head Leasing. Although legally separate, “compaonent units” are
Important because of certain financial transactions that exist between the entities and the Town.

B. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detalled infarmation about the Town’s major funds while
focusing on the flscal accountability. Funds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding, such as those required by state law, and spending for particular purposes. The
Board of Commissioners establishes several funds to assure control as well as good management and to
axhibit proper usage of certain taxes and grants. The Town of Nags Head, like all other governmentai
entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and refiect compliance (or non-compliance) with
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes.

The Town has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the Town's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus en 1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out
(that is, their liquidity) and 2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. This is
the manner in which the financial budget is typlcally developed. Because this information provides
a short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fawer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the Town's programs, as opposed to the government-
wide statements which provides both a short and a long tarm focus, a reconciliation is provided on
the page following the fund statements that explains the relationship or differences between the
two views,

Proprietary Funds — Services for which the Town charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds, Accounted for like the government-wide statements, proprietary funds provide
botk fong and short-term financial information and in addition include the statement of cash flows.
A reconciliation statement is once more provided following these funds to explain the difference
between them.

Fiduciary Funds - The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its Police Special Separation Allowance
Pension Trust. The Town is also the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Beach Nourishment Trust, The
Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their
intended purposes. The Town's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary
net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the
government-wide financial statements because the town cannot use these assets to finance its
cperations.

C. Notes tp the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

D. Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accempanying notes, this report 2lso presents certain
required supplementary infarmation concerning the Town of Nags Head’s progress in funding its obligation
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to provide pension benefits to certain of its employees.

E. Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining statements for selected funds showing additional
detail for revenues and expenditures.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial pesition, In the case of
the Town of Nags Head, assets exceeded liabilities by $34,515,865 at the close of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. A large portion of the Town of Nags Head's net assets $20,172,553 represents its
investment in capital assets {e.g. land, building, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is. still cutstanding plus any loan proceeds not yet expended at the end of the
fiscal year, The resources to repay the debt must be provided from sources other than capital assets,
since it cannot be used to liquidate the liabilities,

An additional portion of the Town of Nags Head's net assets $111,075 represents resources that are
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remainder of $14,232,237 in unrestricted net assets
is the residual amount of assets that can be used without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legislation, ar other legal requirements. However, it should be noted that only a portion of this
amount is available and unobligated to finance additional day-te-day governmental activities ar unforeseen
circumstances in the future,

Town of Nags Head's Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities : Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Qa/

Current and Other Assets $ 12441325 § 13213240 § 4995883 § 35003978 ¢ 17,437,208 ¢ 18,217,218

Capital Assets, Net 15,203,600 14,594,873 8,602,322 8,760,433 23,805,522 23,355,306
Total Assets 77,644,925 27,808,113 13508205 13764411 41,243,130 41,572,524
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 4,551,029 5,373,028 965,140 1,001,183 5,516,169 6,464,212
Other Liabilties 451,382 492,104 759,714 014,626 1,211,096 1,406,730
Total Liabities 5,002,411 5,865,133 1,724,854 7 005,809 5,727,265 7,870,542
Net Assets 23642514 21,942,980 11,873,351 11,758,602 34,515,865 33,701,582

Investment in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 12,497,006 11,989,318 7,675,457 7,705341 20,172,553 19,694,659
Restricted 111,075 977,795 . . 111,075 977,795
Unrestricted 10,034,343 8,975,857 4,197,894 4053,261 14232237 13,029,128
Total Net Assets § 22642514 $ 21,942,980 $ 11,873,351 % 11,758,602 $ 34515865 $ 33,701,582

‘See Exhihit 1




Reyanties,

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
Capital Grants

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Investment Income
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works/Transportation
Environmental Protection
Interest on Long Term Dabt
Water Utility

Total Expensas

Net Increasa in Net Assels
Transfers

Net Assets - Juiy 1
Net Assets - June 30

Town of Nags Head's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

$ 460503 § 639,682 4 2735363 § 2,741,918 § 3204866 $ 3,381,600
301,159 35,090 - 29,900 301,159 68,950
328,146 218,213 - - 328,146 218,213
4,513,175 4,482,309 - - 4,513,175 4,482,309
4,008,320 4,092,110 - - 4,005,320 4.0492,110
489 672 595034 186,930 236,856 676,602 835,930
851,663 802,237 245,559 882,217 1,097,222 1,664,454
10,958,638 10,872,675 - 3,167.852 3,890,531 14,126,450 14,763 606
2,215,258 2,216,074 - - 2,215,258 2,216,074
4,445,113 4,310,004 - - 4,445,113 4,310,008
1,720,014 1,621,652 - - 1,720,014 1,621,662
1,687,064 1,525,948 - - 1,687,064 1,529,948
191,655 76 - - 191,655 217,671
- - 3,053,103 2,955,819 3,053,103 2,955,819
10,259,104 9,895,364 3,053,103 2855819 13,312,207 12,851,183
699,534 977,311 114,749 935,112 814,283 1,912,423
- (41,756) - 41,766 - -
21,942 880 21,007 435 11,758,602 10,781,724 33,701,582 31,783,154

§ 22,643,514 § 21,942,980 % 11,873,351 § 11,756,602 § 34,515,865 % 33,701,582

A. Governmental Activitios

Governmenta! activities increased the Town of Nags Head's net assets by $699,534. The governmental
activities revenues increased by $85,963, which included an increase in FEMA reimbursement revenue
from the appeal of sprigging costs for Hurricane Isabel damages of $282,318. Ad valorem tax revenus
was up by $30,866 with other taxes down by $86,790. Investment earnings decreased by $109,362
due to declining market rate of return. Building permits were down for the fifth year in a row with a

decrease of $30,628.

Without the FEMA revenue in the current fiscal year, total governmental revenues decreased by

$196,355 (-1.81%),

During the vear, the Town's governmental expenses were $10,259,104 an increase of $363,740

{+3.68%).
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Revenues by Source for Governmental Type Activities
B. Business Type Activities

Business type activities increased the Town of Nags Head's net assets by $114,749. There are three
separate and distinct operations accounted for in the Enterprise Funds: the Water Utility Operations,
the Storm Water Fund, and Nags Head Leasing. Charges for service In the Water Fund decreased
slightly in the Water Operations Fund by $7,213 and increased slightly in the Storm Water Fund by
$658 as compared to the preceding year.

Revenues by Source for Business Type Activities

Dther Revanua
Sources, $245,559

Investment Earnings,
$136,930

Charges for Sarvices,
" %2,735363
]

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS
A, Governmental Funds

As noted eartier, the Town of Nags Head uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Town of Nags Head’s governmental funds is




to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources, Such
information is useful in assessing the Town of Nags Head's financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a governments net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Nags Head. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the Ganeral Fund was $8,266,136, while total fund balance
decreased siightly to $9,505,611. As a measure of the genera] fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare unreserved fund balance to tota! fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
69.43% of total General Fund expenditures compared with 64.15 % for the prior year. Note that
unreserved fund balance is up from the prior year unreserved fund balance of $6,859,833 by
$1,406,3G3 {+20.50%) while total fund balance is down by $440,322 (-4.43%). The increase in
unreserved fund balance relative to the prior year is a result of decreases in reserved fund bafances for
encumbrances and restricted assets for capital items that were not complete as of the end of the prior
fiscal year and were still encumbered. Al current year capital acquisitions and escrow dishursements
were completed prior to June 30, 2008 and resulted in no similar restrictions of fund batance.

As of June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of the Town of Nags Head reported combined fund
balance of $10,525,443, a 4.11 % decrease over last year. Included in this change in fund balance are
decreases in fund balance in the General fund, Capital Reserve Fund, and Beach Nourfshment Project
Fund partially offset by increases in fund balance in the Beach & Sound Access Project Fund.

B. Proprietary Funds

The Town of Nags Head's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
governmeant-wide statement but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $3,877,353. This represents an increase of $64,766. Unrestricted net
assets in the Storm Water Fund also increased by $79,848 to $320,047.

C. Capital Assets

The Town of Nags Head's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 2008, totals $23,805,922 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, construction in progress, cther improvements, land, intanglbles, machinery and equipment
and vehicles. '

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following demolition (there were no
significant acquisitions or disposals):

= Demolition of the Water Tower located adjacent to the Town Hall facility originally
constructed in 1962 at a cost of $945,000 was fully depreciated at the time of demolition.
The Town Incurred costs of approximately $50,000 for the removal of the tower and related
site restoration expenditures.



Town of Nags Head's Capiial Assets

(net of depreciation)
Governmental Activities Business - Type Aclivities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land $ 5025411 § 5025411 $2453473 § 2443252 § 7478884 § 7473663
Construction in Progress 534 158 535,369 45875 136,650 580,031 576,018
Buildings 5,100,112 5,339,638 3,324,880 3072409 8,425,082 8,412 047
Other Impravements 1,243 6268 976,297 - - 1,243,626 a76 297
Equipment £34 136 515,694 460,347 644,858 894 483 1,260 552
Vehicles 2,768,159 2,098 464 25,270 59,101 . 2,791,429 2,157 565
Intangibles - 2282377 2389163 . 2282377 2,399,183
Total $ 8,760,433 $23,805522 § 23355306

"$ 15,003,600 § 14504873 §8.602 322

B. Long Term Debt

As of June 30, 2008, the Town of Nags Head had no bonded debt. The Town’s total debt decreased by

$948,043 for the year.

See Exhibit 1

Town of Nags Head's Qustanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Tatal
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Finance Contracts $3,032666 ¢ 3604684 § 629,080 $§ BB T3B 33,661,746 $ 4,463,427
Capital Leases 1,111,838 1,376,813 97,785 166,354 1,209,623 1,543,167
Compensated Absences 406,525 381,632 38,275 38,081 444 800 427 623
Total 345651028 § 5373028 $ 965140 § 1,001,183 $5b16168 § 8,464,212

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The level of unemployment in Dare County ranged from 2.6% to 10.2% compared to the seasonally

adjusted statewide average of 5.04%.

Construction in fiscal year 2008 decreased overall in the Town of Nags Head by $436,860 (-1.52%)
from the previous year. This was due to increases in both large single family and multi-family
construction of $2,190,560 and $5,400,000 respectively with decreases in single family construction of
$1,816,765, commercial construction of $4,563,000, and miscellaneous construction of $1,647,655.
Both building permit fees and review fees were also down in fiscal year 2007-2008, the fifth straight
decrease in annua!l revenues for building permit fees.

The property tax base increased by .65% to $3,051,148,434 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
QOccupancy tax exhibited continued strong growth for the Town in fiscal year 2007-2008 and was up in
eleven out of the twelve months relative to the same month in the prior year. Results from sales taxes
were mixed with increases in revenues from Article 40 and 42 taxes and decreased revenues from
Article 39 and 44 taxes. land transfer tax revenues decreased even further from the significant
reduction in land transfer revenues experienced during the prior two fiscal years with the continuing
softening of the real estate markeat,

It




reduction in land transfer revenues experienced during the prior two fiscal years with the continuing
softening of the real estate market.

The Town's adopted budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 reflects no change in the property
tax rate of .1475 per $100 in assessed valuation compared to the previaus year.

Conslidering the above indicators when adopting the operating budget for the next fiscal year, the
Town's adopted 2008-2009 budget decreased by $993,847 (-7.56%) over the 2007-2008 amended
budget and decreased by $60,613 (-.50%) over the adopted budget for 2007-2008.

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities: The adopted budget for fiscal year 2008-2009 is based on the estimated
increased property valuation of $3,046,607,165 up $20,687,562% (+.68%) from the prior year valuation
of $3,025,5919,536 allowing the tax rate to remain steady af $.1475/$100. The adopted budget reflects
a slight decrease of $60,613 from the priar year's adopted budget. Decreases in projected funding
include a reduction of $140,000 in land transfer tax revenues, a reduction of $15,000 in combined sales
tax revenues, a reduction in building permit fees and review fees of $57,025 and $25,000 respectively,
reduced rents from the YMCA pass-through of $64,740, decreased grant revenue for the west side
multi-use path project of $131,866, and a $210,000 decrease in projected revenues from investment
income. These are partially offset by increases in revenues from occupancy tax of $100,000, cable and
utility franchise tax revenues of $69,000, an increased contribution from Capital Reserve Fund
revehues of $64,373, cell tower rents of $87,250, and an increase in anticipated use of Fund Balance in
the amount of $307,791. .

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are generally flat with the exception of funding for Public
Works Facilities Maintenance which is down by $130,484 due to the inclusion of the west-side multi-use
path project costs of $151,306 in the prior fiscal year. Funds budgeted for Special Projects for the
pass-through costs of YMCA debt are down by $64,740 due to reduced annual debt service costs and
funds budgeted for Ocean Rescue are down by $31,945 primarily from reduced staffing related to not
contracting with the National Park Service to pravide ocean rescue services for Coquina Beach for the
summer 2008 season. Departments with projected increases include Town Manager up by $71,036
with the funding for a full time Deputy Manager position filled in the prior fiscal year with part time
contracted services. In addition, Public Works Sanitaticn and Solid \Waste are up a combined $63,887
from the Increased cost of fuel, increased cost per ton for tipping fees, and the new $2 per ton tax
effective July 1, 2008,

Business —Type Activities: The water rates in the Town will remain the same with projected growth in
gallons purchased of 5.55%. Appropriated retained earnings will be used to fund the debt service on
the new water tank of $93,874, water line improvement projects $115,000, replacement of the pump
control panel for Water Operations of $95,400, phase I of II1 of actuator replacement costs of $17,780
for Fresh Pond capital projects, current year contingency in the amount of $50,000 with funds not
spent in the prior fiscal year, the $100,000 match of any grant or revolving loan funds received for
sand bottom septic tank replacement, and an one time use of fund balance for current year operating
costs in the amount of approximately $300,000.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Nags Head's finances and to
demonstrate the Town’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any information
provided in this report or reguests for additiona! information should be addressed to Finance Officer, Town
of Nags Head, Administrative Services, P.O. Box 99, Nags Head, NC, 27959 or by calling 252-441-5508.
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Exhibit 1
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 6,431,358 % 4,447,938 $ 10,879,296
Investments 3,505,868 - 3,505,868
Taxes receivable (net) 9,783 - 0,782
Accounts receivable (net) 68,767 382,641 451,408
Accrued interest receivable 87,375 - 87,375
Due from other governments 811,183 103,254 914,437
Inventories 86,211 62,050 148,261
Special assessments 124 - 124
Prepaid items 2,656 - 2,656
Total current assets 11,003,325 4,995,883 15,999,208
Non-current assets:
Capttal Lease Receivable 1,438,000 - 1,438,000
Capital Assets [Note 47:
Land, non-depreciable
improvemants and
construction in progress 5,559,567 2,499,348 8,058,915
Cther capital assets, net of
depreciation 9,644,033 6,102,974 15,747,007
Total capital assets 15,203,600 8,602,322 23,805,922
Total Assets 27,644,925 13,508,205 41,243,130
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 152,030 135,143 287,173
Acerued liabilities 196,019 15,37% 211,304
Unearned revenue 70,327 224,000 294,327
Bonds and deposits 32,520 385,196 417,716
Due to cther governments 485 - 486
Long-term Yiabilities:
Due within one year 1,249,627 143,213 1,392,840
Dueg in more than one year 3,301,402 821,927 4,123,329
‘Total liabilities 5,002,411 1,724,854 6,727,265
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nat of
related debt 12,497,096 7,675,457 20,172,553
Restricted for:
Powel! bill expenditures 103,068 - 103,068
Public safety enforcement 3,007 ' - 8,007
Unrestricted 10,034,343 4,197,854 14,232,237
Total net assets $ 22642514 §$ 11873351 $ 34515865

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works/T ransportatlon
Environmental Protection
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmenta! activities
(See Note 1)

Business-type activities:
Water
Storm Water
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Program Revanues

Charges for

Expenses Sarvices

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and
Contributicns  Contributions

$ 2215258 § 401,438 § 6,760 § -
4,445,113 68,065 11,582 8,359
1,720,014 : 282,817 319,747
1,687,064 - - -
191,655 - - -
10,259,104 469,503 301,159 328,146
3,021,844 2,622,985 - 215,000
31,159 112,378 - -
3,053,103 2,735,363 215,000

$ 13,312,207 $ 3,204,866

$_ 301,159 § 543,146

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Qccupancy tax
Land transfer taxes
Sales taxes

Other taxes

Grants and contributions not restricied to spe:crf'l: programs
Unrestricted investment earnings

‘Miscellaneous
Capital Contributions

Total general revenues, special items and transfers

Total change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statlements are an integral part of this statament.
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Exhibit 2

Net {Expense) Revenue and changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

% {1,807,060) % - % (1,807,060
(4,357,067) - (4,357,067)
{1,117,450) - (1,117,450
(1,687,064) - (1,687,064)
(191,655) - (191,655}
{9,160,296) - (9,160,296)
- {183,959) (183,959}

- 81,219 81,219
- {102,740) {102,740%)
(9,160,296) (102,740) (9,263,036)
4,513,175 - 4,513,175
1,863,855 - 1,863,955
516,826 - 516,826
1,585,496 - 1,585,496
35,043 - 35,043
600,044 - 600,044
489,672 186,930 676,602
230,619 5,209 235,828
21,000 25,350 46,350
0,855,830 217,485 10,077,319
699,534 114,749 814,283
21,942,580 11,758,602 33,701,582

$ 22842514 $ 11,873,351 $ 34,515,865

The noles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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Balance Sheet _
Governmental Funds Exhibit 3
June 30, 2008
Major Funds
Capital BeachfSound . Beach
Gengral Reserve Accesses  Mourishment Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equlvalents $ 5539215 § 648,977 3 - $ 243,167 $ 6,431,35%
Investments 3,505,867 - - - 3,505,887
Taxes receivable (net) 9,783 - - - 9,753
Accounts receivable (net) b8, 767 - - - 68,767
Accrued Interest receivable 87,375 - - - 87,375
Due from other governments 811,182 - - - 811,182
Due from other funds ) 10,568 141,627 - - 152,195
Inventories 86,211 - - - 86,211
Special aszessments 124 - - - 124
Prepaid [kems 2,656 - - - 2,656
Capltal isase receivable 1,438,005 - - - 1,438,000
Total assets $ 11,559,748 § 790,604 $ - § 243,167 $ 12,593,519
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabllities;
Accounts payable $ 148,659 $ $ - % 3371 % 152,030
Accrued expenses 196,019 - - - 196,019
Bonds and deposlts ’ 32,520 - - - 32,520
Cue ta other funds 141,627 - 10,558 - 152,195
Due to cther governments 485 - - - 486
Deferred revenue 1,464,499 - - - 1,464,499
Uneamed revenue 70,327 - - - 70,327
Tokal liabillties 2,054,137 - 10,568 3371 2,068,075
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 78,233 - - 1,125,500 1,403,733
Inventories 86,211 - - - 86,211
State statute 951,300 141,627 - - 1,102,927
Streets - Powell bill 103,068 - - - 103,058
Prepaids 2,656 - - - 2,656
Drug enforcement 8,007 - .- - 8,007
Unreserved 7,347,800 - (10,568)  (B85,704) 6,451,528
Designated for future capital - 425,925 - - 423,925
Designated for next year budget : 918,336 223,052 - - 1,141,388
Total fund balances §,505,611 790 604 (10,568) 239,706 10,525,443
- Totat liabilitles and fund balances $ 11,559,748 % 790,604 3 - % 243,167 12,593,519
Amounts repors for governenental activitles in the statement
of net assets (Exhibit 1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported In
the funds. 15,203,600
Uiabilities for eamed but deferred revanues In the
fund statements.
Deferred FEMA recelvable -
Deferred capital iease receivable 1,425,000
Deferred taxes receivable 26,499
Some fiabllities, including bonds payable and accrued interest,
are not due and payable In the currept period and therefore
are not raported in the funds. (4,551,028)
Net assets of governmental activitles § 22,642,514




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and licenses
tUnrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees

Sales and services

Invastment earnings
Misceilaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Governmant
Public Safaty
Environmental Protection
Public Works
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

QOTHER FINANCING SQURCES (UUSES)
Transfers fraom other funds
Transfers to other funds
Installment purchase
obligations issued

Total other financing sources (uses,

Net change in fund balance

Fund bafances - beginning

Exhlbit 4

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance "%*1°'?
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Major Funds
General Capital  Beach/Sound  Beach
Fund Reserve Accesses  Nourishment Total
$ 4512391 % - % - 4 - % 4,512,391
4,043,397 - - - 4,043,397
561,957 - - - 561,967
604,275 - 77,982 - 682,257
360,033 - - - 360,033
4,519 _ - - .- 4,519
455,040 24,087 - 10,545 489,672
563,618 - - - 563,618
11,105,240 24,087 77,982 10,545 11,217,854
2,170,217 - - - 2,170,217
4,050,636 - - - 4,050,636
1,477,002 - - - 1,477,002
1,369,802 - - - 1,369,802
1,149,420 - - . 1,149,420
191,655 - - - 191,655
1,495,637 - 16,354 60,535 1,572,526
11,904,369 - 16,354 60,535 11,981,258
(799,12%) 24,087 61,628 (49,990) (763,404}
143,273 95,892 - - 240,165
(96,892)  (143,273) - - (240,165)
312,426 - - - 312,426
358,807 f46,381) - - 312,426
(440,322)  (22,294) 61,628 (49,590) (450,978)
9,545,933 812,898 (72,196) 289,786 10,576,421

Fund Halances - ending

$ 9505611 % 790,604 §

(10,568) $ 239,796 $ 10,525,443

The notes to the financial statements ara an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Fa::"z“:;::
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (450,978)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as
expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of thase assets is allocated over
thejr estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
current period,
Contributed Infrastructure $ 21,000
Capital Outlay 1,572,526
Depreciation (984,799) 608,727

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues/expenditures in the funds.

Change in deferred revenue for tax revenues 784
Change in deferred FEMA revenue -
Change in deferred capital lease receivable {281,000}

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net assets.  This is the
amount by which principal repayments exceeded
the proceeds from lease purchase financing.
Debt Issued $ (312,426}
Increase in compensated absences (14,953)

Principal Repayments 1,149,420 822,001

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 699,534

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
General Fund and Annually Budgeted Capital Reserve Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

General Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Pasitive
Criginal Final Ampunts {Negative)
Revenuas:
Ad valorem taxes $ 4,452,415 $ 4,452,415 $ 4512391 4 50,076
Other taxes and licenses 4,160,000 4,160,000 4,043,397 - (116,603}
Unreskricted intergovernmental 453,000 453,000 561,967 108,967
Restricted intergovernmenital 344,445 349,159 604,275 255,116
Permits and fees 425,150 425 650 360,033 {65,617}
Special assessments 500 500 499 {1}
Sales and services 8,000 8,000 4,51% (3,481}
Investment earnings 472,500 472,500 455,040 {17,460}
Miscelianeous 617,595 674,965 563,119 (111,846}
Tatal revenues 10,933,608 10,996,185 11,105,240 109,051
Expenditure:
Current:
General Government 2,745,510 2,481,518 2,196,171 285,347
Public Safety 4,433,545 5,059,787 4,705,907 353,890
Environmental Protection 1,577,712 1,988,083 1,950,111 37,972
Public Warks 1,844,503 1,520,831 1,711,105 209,786
Debt servica:
Principal 1,074,938 1,159,153 1,149,420 9,733
Interest and other charges 316,622 316,622 191,655 124,967
Contingency 125,000 125,000 - 125,000
Total expenditures - 12,117,830 13,051,064 11,904,36% 1,146,695
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,184,224) (2,054,875) (799,129) 1,255,746
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds 673,67% - 173,679 143,273 {30,406)
Transfers to other funds {100,000} {100,000} {96,892) 3,108
Installment purchase
obligations issued - 312,426 312,426 -
Appropriated Fund Balance 510,545 1,668,770 - [1,668,770)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,184,224 2,054,875 358,807 {1,696,068)
Met change in fund balance $ - (440,322) $ _(440,322)

Fund balances, beginning of year 9,945,933

5 9,505,611

Fund balances, end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral par of this statement.
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Exhibit 5

Capital Reserve Fund

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Criginal Firal Amounts {Negative)
$ - % - % $

- - 24,087 24,087
- . 24,087 24 087
- - 24,087 24,087
100,000 100,000 06,592 (3,108)
{158,679} (173,679} (143,273} 30,406
58,679 73673 - {73,679}
- - {46,381) {46,381}
4 - % - (22,294]' $ {22,294)

812,898

$ 790,604

The noles to the financial statements are an integrat part of this staterment.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalepts
Accounts receivable trade (het)
Accounts receivable other (net)
Due from other governments
Inventories

Total current: assets

Capital assets:

Land, non-depreciable
improvements and
canstriction in progress

Other capital assets, net of
depreciation
Total capital assets (net)

Tatal Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
- Unearned revenue
Customer depasits
Cash Bonds
Compensated absences - current
Capital leases payable - current

Total current liahilities

Noncurrent liabllities:
Compensated absences - non current
Capital leases payable - non current

Total noncurrent liabllities
Total liabitities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Exhibit 6
Statement of Net Assets '
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2008
Enterprise Funds
Major Funds Non-Major
Water Storm Water Nags Head
Fund Fund Leasing Total
$ 4122775 324,669 $ 494 § 4,447,938
364,636 5,200 - 369,836
12,805 - - 12,805
103,254 - - 103,254
62,050 - - 62,050
4,665,520 329,869 494 4,995,883
2,499,348 - - 2,499,348
6,015,167 87,807 - 6,102,974
8,514,515 87,807 - 8,602,322
¢ 13,180,035 $ 417,676 $ 494 ¢ 13,598,205
125,321 9,822 - 135,143
13,375 - - 15,375
224,000 - - 224,000
383,251 - - 383,251
1,945 - - 1,945
33,801 - - 33,801
97,929 11,483 - 109,412
881,622 21,305 - 902,927
4,474 - - 4,474
767,124 50,329 - 817,453
771,598 50,329 - 821,927
1,653,220 71,634 - 1,724,854
7,649,462 25,995 - 7,675,457
3,877,353 320,047 494 4,197,894
$ 11526815 § 346,042 § 494 ¢ 11,873,351

The notes Lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 7

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds
Water Storm Water Nags Head
: Fund Fund Leasing Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services ' $ 2088244 4 112378 % - % 2,200,622

Contribution to Fresh Pond 349,447 - - 349,447

Charges to other governmental unlts 65,255 - - 65,255

Rents 77,208 - - 77,208

DEHNR. Grant '

Tap and connection fees 12,135 - - 12,135

Late payment penalties 21,961 - - 21,961

Waier Tag Fees 8,735 - - 8,735

Miscellaneous 5,209 - - 5209
Total operating revenues - 2,628,194 112,378 - 2,740,572
OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 157,063 - - 157,063 .

Seplic Health : 261,734 - - 261,734

Operations 1,331,688 - - 1,331,088

Fresht Pand Cperations 257,005 - - 257,005

Distribution 578,529 - - 578,524

Storm Water - 19,804 - 19,804

Depreclation and amortization 398,623 8,565 - 407,288
Total aperating expanses 2,084 642 28,469 - 3013151
Total operating Incoma (356,448) 83,509 - (272,539)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment eamings 176,051 10,860 19 186,930

Interest expanse (37,302) (2,590} - {39,592}
Total nonoperating revenue {expenses) 138,749 8,170 19 146,938
Incoma (loss) before contributions

and transfers (217,699) 92,079 19 (125,501}

Capital cantributions fram impact feas 215,000 - - 215,000

Capital contributions from Infrastructure 25,350 - - 25,350
Change in net assats 22,651 92,079 19 114,749
Total net assets - beginning 11,504,164 253,963 475 11,758,602
Total net assets - ending ¢ 11,526,815 & 346,042 $ 494 § 11,873,351

The noles lo the financial stataments are an intagral part of his statemant.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers

Cash paid for goods and serviges

Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services
Customer deposits received

Cther operating revenues

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Initial Impact fees received

Interest pald on debt financing

Septie Loans (ssued

Repayment of septic loans

Principal paid on debt financing

Acquisition of capital assets
Met cash previded (used) by capltal and related

financing acthvities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest .

Net Increase {decrease) [n cash and cash equivalents
2alances - beginning of the year
Balances - end of the year

The noles to the financial slatements are an intagral part of this slatement,

Exhibit 8

Page 1of 2
Business-Type Activitles
Enterprise Funds
Water Storm Mags Head

Fund Yater Leasing Total
$ 2,600,000 4 144,854 &% - ¥ 2,753,8%
(1,846,505) (9,982} - (1,856,487)
(772,363) - - (772,369)
4,125 - - 4,125
50,652 - - 50,652
44 903 134 872 - 179,775
213,000 - - 213,000
(37,302) {2,690) - (39,992)
(7,550 - - {7,550}
B,087 - - 2,087
(117,153} ({11,074) - (128,227
(326,492) {9,822} - (336314)
{267,410 (23,586} - {290,596}
175,051 10,860 19 186,530
(46,456) 122,146 19 75.70%
4,189,231 202,523 475 4,372,229
$ 4,122,775 § 324669 § 494 % 4,447,938
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Exhlbit 8

Page 2o0f2
Town of Nags Head, North Carplina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Waler Storm Nags Head
Fund Water Leasing Totzl

Recanclliation of operating income ta net cash provided
by operating actives
Operating Income: ${356448) $ B3909. § - $(272,539)

Adjustments to reconclle operating income to net cash
pravided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 398,623 8,665 - 407 288
Changes in assets and llabllities:
{Increase)} decrease In accounts recelvable 63,223 32,476 - 05,699
{Increase)} decrease In inventories {12,431) - - (12,431}
Increase {decrease) In accounts payable {12,064 9,822 - (2,242)
Increase (decrease) In accrued liabilitles (8,359) - - (8,359)
Increase (decrease) in customer depasits 4,125 - - 4,125
Increase {decrease) In deferred ravenue {31,766) - - (31,766)
Total adjustments 401,351 50,063 - 452, 314
Net cash provided by operating actlvitles $ 44903 § 134872 & - % 179775

Tha notes to the financial statements are an integral gart of this statement.
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Exhibit 9

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008

Private-purpose

Trust
Pension Private Beach
Trust Nourishment
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 227,678 $ 2,051
Total Assets 227,678 2,051

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes  $ 227,678 § 2,051

Tha notes ta the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 10

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Private-purpose

Trust
Pension Private Beach
Additions Trust Nourishment
Empioyer Contributions $ - % -
Private Donations - 2,050
Investment Earnings 9,252 1
Total investment arnings 9,252 1
Tatal additions . 9,252 2,051
Deductions
Benefits 31,485 -
Total deductions 31,485 -
Change in net assets (22,233) 2,051
Net assets - beginning of the ?ear 249,911 -
Met assets - end of the year $ 227,678 % 2,051

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Nags Head conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Nags Head is a municipal corporation, which is governed by an elected mayor and four
commissionars. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the government and its companent units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. The blended component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Unit — Nags Head Leasing Is a not for profit corporation formed and operated for the
purpose of providing financial assistance to the Town of Nags Head and to enable the Town to acquire
water system improvements or other capital items. Nags Head Leasing Corporation is reported as an
Enterprise fund. :

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements, The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities.” Eliminations have been made ta minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities
of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whale or in part by fees
charged to external parties,

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type actlvities of the Town and for each function of the Town’s governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are speclfically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are

clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds

have been reversed for the statement of activitles. Program revenues include (2) fees and charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.,

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’'s funds.
separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fidiciary — are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
eamings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

- General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund accounts
for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary
expenditures are for public safety, public works/transportation, and environmental pratection services.

Capital Reserve Fund. This fund is used to accumulate funds for capital projects.

Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund. This fund accounts for the Town's activities for a beach
nourishment project.

Beach & Sound Access Project Fund. This fund accounts for the Town's capital construction of new
and improved beach and sound access sites.

The Town reports the following majar enterprise funds:
Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town's water operations.
Storm Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town’s storm water management operations.
The Town reports the following non-major enterprise funds:
Nags Head Leasing. This is a Blended Component Unit.
The Town reports the following fiduciary fund types:
Pension Trust. This is a fiduciary fund for the Law Enforcement Officers Supplemental Retirement.
Beach Nourishment Trust. This is a fiduciary fund for private funding c:-fl beach nourishment, Donors
may choose whether to donate funds unconditionally as a gift or based upon the condition of return if the
project should not commence by January 1, 2613,

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietaty, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
_proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economlc resources
measurement focus, The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded af the time (jabilities are Incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants, entitlerments, and donations is recagnized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.
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Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as pregram revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonaperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Town's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as
operating revenug the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
" reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the madified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be
an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law
altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motar vehicles in
North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Dare County is responsible for billing and collecting
the preperty taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in
the County, including the Town of Nags Head. For registered motor vehicles property taxes are due the
first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal
year in which they become due. Therefore, the Town's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Dare
County from March 2007 through February 2008 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Uncollected
taxes which were billed during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded
as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. It is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant résources to such
programs, and then by general revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected to apply only applicable

FASBE Statements and Interpretations Issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do nhot contradict GASB
pranguncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its enterprise funds.
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D. Budgetary Data
1, Budget

As required by the North Carolina General Statutes, the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annuat
balanced budget ordinance for all funds except for those funds that operate under preject ordinances. Al
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system used in recording transactions. Project
ordinances are adopted for the Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund and Beach & Sound Access Project
Fund, both of which are general governmental fund capital projects.

Expenditures may not legaliy exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted
funds and at the object ievel for the multi-year funds. Budgetary control is exercised in all funds, and
appropriations are made at the departmental (functional) level and amended as necessary by the
governing board. The Town Manager is authorized to make interdepartmental transfers in the same fund
up to 10% of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is reduced; however, any
revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing board. During the
year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary including material adjustments related to
hurricane effects.

2. Encumbrances

As reguired by North Carolina State Statutes, the Town maintains encumbrance accounts that are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated
amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are
completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

At June 30, 2008, $78,233 of open purchase orders and contracts were outstanding in the General Fund.
These encumbrances outstanding are reported as “"Reserved for encumbrances” in the fund balance
section of the balance sheet for the General Fund and will be re-appropriated in the subsequent year's
budget. The Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund had $1,125,500 in outstanding encumbrances at
June 30, 2008. The Water fund had $93,314 in encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2008. There were
no open purchase orders in any of the other Town funds.

E. Assets, Llabllities, and Fund Equity

1. Depuosits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law [G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
assaciation whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may establish time deposit
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 153-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers'
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT), a SEC-registered mutuai fund.
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The Town’s investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investmenis are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices, The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which
is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolios securities are valued at fair value. Money market
Investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost. Non-participating interest earning investment contracts are reparted at cost.

In accordance with State law, the Town has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at
fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents,

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended debt proceeds of the General Fund and the Water Fund are classified as restricted assets
because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the debt was originally issued. There
dre no restricted assets in any fund as of June 30, 2008.

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Recelvable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a}], the Town levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2007.

5. Allowanceas for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experlence uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written
off in prior years.

6. Inventory and Prepaid [tems

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The
Town's General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used
rather than when purchased,

The inventories of the Town's enterprise fund consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent use.
The cost of these Inventories is expensed when used or held for resale rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in both government — wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are
used.
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7. Capital Assets

Capltal assets are deflned by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a
certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Minimum capitalization cost Is $5,000.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at ¢ost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

In conjunction with implementing GASB 34, “The New Reporting Model”, the Town began capitalizing
public domain (tinfrastructure™) capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems, water lines, and lighting systems as of July 1, 2003. Infrastructure assets
exceeding the Town’s capitalization threshold will be reported as capital assets in the Statement of Net
Assets, Infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003 were not retroactively reported; therefore, the
infrastructure capital assets in the Statement of Net Assets only include assets purchased after July 1,
2003.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method aver the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructura 30
Buildings 40
Improvements 25
Vehicles 5to 10
Furniture and equipment 5to 20

8. Long-Tarm Obligations

In the government-wide financia! statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liahilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statemaent of net assets.

9, Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty-six days earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town's government-wide and proprietary
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded
as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been
designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

The Town's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does
not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

In accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Town allows non-exempt employees to accrue
compensatory time up to the specified lirnits of 240 hours for non sworn public safety and 480 hours for
sworn public safety employees, The Town uses a frst-in, first-out method for the use of this
campensatory time.
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10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assefs in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
on resources that are. either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of ather governments or imposed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that
cannot be appropriated or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.5. 159-13(b){16)] restricts apprapriation of fund balance for the subseguent year's budget to
an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabiiities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stend at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Reserved:

Reserved for Inventories - Portion of fund balance that is not available for apprepriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available
resources,

Reserved for Encumbrances - Portion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved by State Statute - Portion of fund balance, in addition to reservas for ancumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This amount is
usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by
deferred revenues,

Reserved for Streets - Powell Bill - Portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but legally
segreqated for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of
the total unexpended Powell Bill funds.

Reserved for Prepaids — Portion of fund balance that is not availabie for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance for prepaid expenses for the subsequent fiscal vear which are not
expendable, available resources.

Reserved for Restricted Assets — Portion of fund balance which is not avaitable for appropriation because it
represents loan escrow funds not yet reimbursed for the purchase of capital assats financed by debt.

Reserved for Drug Forfeiture/Enforcement — Portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but
legally sagregated for expenditure as designated by the Director of Public Safety. .
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Unreserved:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - Portion of the total fund balance available for
. appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2008 — 2009 budget ordinance.

Undesignated - Partion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in' conformity with generaily accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

I1. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes

The Town has been advised by the Local Government Commission that its investment in Federal National
Maortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation mortgage backed securities are not in
accordance with State law [G.5.159-30]. State law gives units of government the authority to invest in
obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Martgage Corporation.
An advisory memo from the Attorney General's office advises that only direct obligations of the Federal
Mational Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation are permissible under this
provision, and that Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
mortgage backed securities are not such direct obligations of the Federal Nationai Mortgage Association
and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; based on this reasoning, municipal units do not have
authority to invest in them under G.S. 159-30. Based on this advice, the Town divested its holdings of all
non-compliant mortgage backed securities, at no loss to the Town, for full compliance with G.S. 159-30.

B. Deficit Fund Balances
The following funds had deficit fund balances in the current year:
Beach & Sound Access Project Fund $10,568
The deficit fund balance was the result of timing diffarences in the incurrence of costs for the projects and

reimbursement of funds from grantors. The Town expects to correct the Beach & Sound Project Access
Fund deficit upon receipt of grant funds during the following fiscal year.
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III. Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets

1. Deposits

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using the Pooling Method. Under the
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agents in its
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest
bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositorles using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Town under the
Poaling Methed, the potential exists for under-coilaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high
cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability
for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method, The Town has no polley
regarding custedial risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum
capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The Town
complies with the provisions of G.5. 159-31 when designating official depositaries and verifying that
depasits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2008, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $11,108,025 and a bank balance of
$11,513,850. Of the bank balance, $3,527,030 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2008, the Town's petty
cash fund totaled $1,000. '

2. Investments

At June 30, 2008, the Town's investments were as follows:

Less than

Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months 6-12 Months 1-3 Years 3-7 Years
US Government Obligations $ 934545 $ 302,800 § 352,594 § 279,151 % : -
U5 Governmeant Agencles 472,618 - 175,438 297,380 -
Mortgage backed Securities 634,911 - - 563,293 71,618
NC Capltal Management Trust -
Cash Portfolio* 1,463,593 - 1,463,593 - -

Total: § 3,505,867 ¢ 302,800 ¢ 1,991,625 % 1,139,824 § 71,618

* Because the NC Capltal Management Trust Term Portfolio had duration of 0.9 years, it was presented as
an investment with a maturity of 6-12 months.
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Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates, the
Town’s investment policy limits investments maturing in more then two years from the purchase date to
no more than 20% of the portfolio balance.

Credit Risk,.  The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management
procedures that limits the Town’s investments to the provisions of G.5. 159-30 and restricts the purchase
of secunities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. The Town's
investment in U.S. Treasury Obligations are rated TSY and all other Government Obligations and Agencies
are rated AAA by Standard & Pcor's as of June 30, 2008. The Town's investment in NC Capital
Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's as of June 30,
2008,

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town’s policy prohibits the investment off all long term securities with a
single institution. There is no limit on the amount the Town may invest in any one issuer. The Town has
- more than 5% invested in Federal Home Loan Mortgage securities, Federal Home Loan Bank securities,
Federal Home Loan and Federal National Mortgage Association securities. These investments are 11.95%,
15.74%, and 8.13%, respectively, of the Town’s total investments.

35




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

3. Recalvables

The receivables shown in Exhibit A at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Due from
other Interest
Accounts Taxes Governments Receivable Total
Governmental Activities:

General $ 68,767 $19.783 % 811,182 % 87375 § 987,107
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (10,000) - - {1¢,000)

Total governmental activities  § 68,767 $ 9,783 $ 811,182 $ 87,375 § 977,107

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 394,914 - 5 103,254 - % 498,168
Stormwater 5,200 - - - 5,200
Allowance for doubtful accounts  (17,473) - - - (17,473}
Total business type activitles ~ $382,641 $ - % 103,254 § - ¢ 485,895

Due from other governments consisted of the following:

Occupancy tax $ 354,392
Land transfer tax 126,746
Sales taxes 237,657
Tax reimbursement 69,735
Grants 15,426
Other 7,226
Total $ 811,182

Capital Lease recejvable

The Town assisted the Outer Banks Family YMCA In obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired title to the YMCA property and borrowed funds
from the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease
the property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no
flnancial responsibility beyond lease payments. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2008 was
$1,438,000. Total payments recelved under this lease for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were
$346,354 and the payments made were $281,000 in principal and $65,354 in interest.
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4, Capital Assats

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balances  Increases Transfers  Balances

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 5 5025411 % - % - $ 5025411
Construction in progress 538,369 350,850  {356,063) 534,156
Total capital assets not belng depreciated 5,564,780 350,850  {356,063) 5,559,567
Capltal assets being depreciated:
Buildings 7,085,446 - - 7,085,446
Cther improvements 1,055,075 32,553 356,063 1,443,691
Equipment 1,459,983 45,017 {74,395) 1,430,605
Yehicles and motorized eguipment 5,037,563 1,165,106  {201,588) 6,001,081
Total capital assets being depreciated 14,638,067 1,242,676 80,080 15,960,823
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,745,808 239,526 1,985,334
Other Improvements 78,778 121,287 200,065
Equipment B4, 289 126,575 (74,355) 896,459
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,939,099 497,411 (201,588) 3,234,922
Fotal accumulated depreciation 5,607,974 684,799  {275,983) 6,316,790
Total capital assets being depreciated, nat 4,030,003 9,644,033
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 14,594,873 $ 15,203,600

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government 3 42,803
Public Safety 392,231
Public Works/Transportation 339,039
Environmental Protection 210,726
Total Deprecation expense $ 584,799
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Capital asset activities for the Business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balan¢es  Increases  Transfers Balances

Business-type activities:
Enterprise Funds
Capltal assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 2,448,252 ¢ 5221 $ - § 2,453,473
Canstruction in Progress . 136,650 208,784 (2939,559) 45875
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2584902 214,005 (259,559) 2,499,348
Capital assets being depreciated:
Fiant 6,256,369 25,350 (645,441) 5,636,278
Equipment 1,082,350 9,822 - 1,092,172
Vehicles 144,861 - - 144 Hp1
Intanglbles 4,203,620 - - 4,203,620
Total capital assets being depreciated 11,687,200 35,172 (645,441) 11,076,931
Less accumulated depreciation for: :
Piant ' 3183960 182,109 (1,054,771) 2,311,298
Equipment 437,492 84,562 139,771 631,825
Vehicles 85,760 3384 - 119,581
Intangibles 1,804,457 106,786 - 1,911,243
Total accumutated depreciation 5,511,669 407288 _ (945000) 4,973,857
Total capital assets belng depreciated, net 6,175,531 6,102,974
Fund capital assets, nzt 8,760,433 8,602,322
Business-type activities capital assets, net  § 8,760,433 $ 8,602,322

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2008. At year-end, the government's
estimated commitments to projects ongoing are as follows:

Remaining

Praject Spent-to-date  Commitment

Beach Nourishment $ 467,000 % 1,125,500
Baltlc Street access 10,568 142,640
Waterline Improvements 45,875 75,055
Total § 523443 4% 1,343,195
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B. Liabilities

1. Pension Plan Obligations
a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description

The Town of Nags Head contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3
of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. - The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR) for the State of North Carclina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27659-1410,
ar by calling {919} 981-5454.

Funding FPolicy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The Town is required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Town, the current rate for employees not engaged
in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.87% and 4.86%, respectively, of annual covered
payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of the Town of Nags Head are established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town’s contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $260,794, $249,502, and $240,884, respactively. The
contributions made by the Town equaled the required contributions for each year,

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Séparation Allowance
Plan Description

The Town of Nags Head administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance™), a
single-empioyer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town's qualified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .B5 percent of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carclina General Assembly.

All full time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December
31, 2007 the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of;

Retirees receiving benafits 2
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefiis 0
Active plan members 21
Tatal 23

A separate report was not issued for the plan.
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- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting. Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the Town has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments. Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits,
repurchase agreements, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust investments are reported at
cost or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and
United States Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The Town is required by Article 120 of G.5. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made In the Generai
Fund operating budget. The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be
amanded by the North Carollna General Assembly. There were na contributions made by employees.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2006
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. Item (b} included an inflation component of 3.75%. The
assumptions did not include post-employment benefit increases. The actuarlal value of assets was
determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued Tabilities are being
amortized as a leve! doliar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2006 was 24 years.
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The Town’s annual pension cost and net pension
obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual reguired contribution $ 16,335
Interest on net pension obligation {2,484)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 2,105
Annual pension cost 15,556
Contributions made -
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 15,956
Net pension obligation beginning of year - (34,256)
Net pension obligation end of year $ (18,300)

3 Year Trend Information

For Year Ended  Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Net Pension

June 30 {APC) APC Contributed Qbligation
2006 $ 20,734 139.3% $  (13,808)
2007 16,205 226.2% (34,256)
2008 15,956 0.0% {18,300}

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was §7.56% percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $357,343, and the actuarial value of assets was $241,424,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) of $115,919. The covered payrol! (annual payroll
of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,091,569, and the ratlo of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 10.62 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits,

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Pian Description

The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan {Plan), a defined contribution pensien
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides
retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.
The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financia! Report (CAFR} for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension
trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controlier, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by calling (919) 981-5454,
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Funding Policy

Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each manth an amount equal to five
percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately., Also, the law
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions 1o the plan. Contributions for the year ended June
30, 2008 were $79,441, which consisted of $53,596 from the Town and $25,845 from the law enforcement
officers.

d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers
Plarn Dascription

The Town adopted a Supplementai Retirement Incc-me Plan, a defined contribution plan, for regular
employees beginning January 31, 1991,

Funding Policy

The Town contributes an amount equal to three percent of each employee’s salary {excluding law
enforcement officers), and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Employees may also make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 were $217,110,
which consisted of $128,564 from the Town and $88,546 from employees.

e. Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund
Plan Descripfion

The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the Town of Nags Head, to the Firemen's and Rescue
Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of
G.5. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly, The Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund, That report may be obtained
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699~
1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Fandm_g Policy

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a non-employer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The Town contributes $10 per month on behalf of
each firefighter employed by the Town and each qualified member of the Nags Head Volunteer Fire
Department. The Town's contributions for the three years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were
$3,200, $3,640, and $3,765 respectively.
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f. Other Post-employment Benefits

Accarding to & Town resolution, the Town provides post-employment health care benefits to retirees of the
Town, pravided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
(System) and have at least ten years of creditable service with the Town. The Town contributes towards
the cost of coverage for these benefits according to the following scale: ten years or more at 25%, fifteen
years or more at 50%, twenty years or more at 75%, and twenty-five years or more at 100%. Also, the

Town's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's group rates. Currently 9
retirees are eligible for post-employment health benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the
Town made payments for post-employment health benefit premiums of $33,672. The Town obtains health
care coverage through private insurers.

g. Other Employment Benefit

The Town has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirament System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries
of thase employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump
sum death bepefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 manths prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or he
less than $25,000, All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan, The Town has no
liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of
monthly payroli, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees
not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are
made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of eligible
participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 the Town made contributions to the State for death
benefits of $6,750. The Town's required conitributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and
for law enforcement officers represented .07% and .14% of covered payroll, respectively. The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount
and the other benefit amount.
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2. Payabies

Payables at Exhibit A at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Salarfes and Accrued  Customer
Vendors Benefits Interest Deposits Total

Governmental Activities
General _ $ 153129 % 195,015 4 $ 28,050 $ 377,198
Beach Nour/shment Fund 3,372 - - - 3,372

Total Governmental activities  $ 156,501 § 196,019 % $ 28050 ¢ 380,570

Business-type Activities

Water $ 125321 § 15,375 4 - § 383,251 § 523,947
Stormwater 9,822 - - - 9,822
Total Business-type activities  $ 135,143 % 15375 § - § 383251 $ 533,769

3. Deferred / Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred / unearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Unearned

Deferred Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes and privilege licenses (General Fund) $ - 5 39,244
Taxes and privilege licenses receivable {General Fund) 25,852 -
Capital Lease for YMCA {General Fund) 1,438,000 -
Special assessment receivable (General Fund) 124 -
.Miscellaneous accounts receivable {(General Fund) 523 -
Prepaid rent (General Fund) . - 31,083
Prepaid impact fees (Water Fund) - 224,000
" Total $ 1,464,459 § 294,327

4. Risk Management,

The Town is exposed to various risks of joss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town participates in self-
funded risk-finandng pools administered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities. Through these
pools, the Town obtains general liability and aute liability coverage of $2 million per eccurrence, property
coverage up to the total insurance values of the property policy, and workers’ compensation coverage up
to statutory fimits. The poals are reinsured through commercial companies for single occurrence claims
against general Iiability, auto liability and property in excess of $500,000 and $300,000 up to statutory
limits for workers” compensatien. The property liabllity pool has an aggregate limit for the total property
losses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit based upon a percentage of the total insurance values.
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The Town carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled ciaims have not exceaded coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

The Town carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP}. Because the Town
owns property in an area of the State that has been mapped and designated an “AE, A036, AD4, C, and X"
area (an area with a 1% annual chance of flooding and a 26% chance of flooding over 30 years) by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Town is eligible to purchase coverage of $500,000 per
structure through the NFIP. The Town is also eligible to and has purchased commercial flood insurance for
up to $5,000,000 of coverage per structure for properties in C and X designated areas. The Town has also
purchased commercial excess flood insurance [n the amount of $2,456,853 for its Town Hall structure and
£955,000 for its newest fire station.

In accordance with G.5. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time
of the City's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance officer and
tax collector are each individually bonded for $125,000 each. The remaining employees that have access
to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $250,000.

5. Claims and Judgments

At June 30, 2008 the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's
management and the Town atiorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the Town's financial position.

6. Lang-Term Deabt

a. Capital Leases and Installment Finance Contracts

The Town entered into a fAifteen year installment financing contract in 1995 with First Union National Bank
of North Carolina for the construction of a 19,348 square foot municipal complex. The amount borrowed
was $2,400,000 at an interest rate of 4.80% and is secured by the property. Payments are due in semi-
annual instaliments of $113,143 with final payment due December 15, 2010.

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2002 with Bank of America for the
construction of the YMCA building. The amount borrowed was $3,721,000 requiring repayment in
quarterly installments of varying amounts. The Interest rate is variable and is calculated as 65% of
London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.14% per annum and is secured by the property and the
building. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease the property to the YMCA for the total of the
amount due under the financing arrangement and has no financial responsibility beyond lease payments.
The Lease Agreement with the YMCA calls for payments in the amount of the debt to be made directly to
Bank of America as they become due. Should the YMCA defaulf on the payments, the bank may take
possession of the property. The Town has the right in that case to purchase the property at 25% below
market value and take possession of the property by continuing to make the debt service payments.

45




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the
construction of the fire/police facility in south Nags Head. The amount borrowead was $1,600,000 at an
interest rate of 3.82% and is secured by the property. Originally payments were due in annual
installments of $106,666.67 plus accrued interest with final payment due on May 30, 2015, The Town
prepaid $125,068 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the
remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in annual installments of $97,046 plus accrued
interest through May 17, 20119,

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment fnancing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the
construction of an above ground water storage tank and waterfine extension located adjacent to the Public
Works Facility. The amount borrowed was $1,200,000 at an interest rate of 3.85% and is secured by the
property. Originally payments were due in annual installments of $102,840.98 including accrued interast
with final payment due on May 30, 2018. The Town prepaid $85,871 during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in
annual installments of $93,875 including accrued interest through May 17, 2019.

The Town currently has seven leases outstanding for various vehicles and equipment. Apnual payments
range from $23,014 to $126,970. Expiration dates range from April 2009 to May 2013. Interest rates vary
from 2.49% to 3.78%.

The gross value of all assets recorded under capital leases and instaliment finance contracts is $£7,642,295.
The foliowing is an analysis of the assets recorded under capital leases and installment finance contracts in
the Town’s at June 30, 2008:

Classes of Property Cost
Building $ 4,000,000
Vehicles and equipment 3,642,295
Total . $ 7,642,295
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A summary of changes in the Governmental long-term debt follows:

General Leng-term Debt General Long-term Current
July 1, 2007 Increases Decreasas  Debt June 30, 2008 Fartion
: BY TYPE OF DEBT
' Finance Cantract % 3,604,684 % - $ (572,018} % 3,032,666 $ 548440
Capital Leases 1,376,813 312,426 (577,401} 1,111,838 426,004
Compensated Absences 391,532 275,183 {260,150} 406,525 275,183
$ 5373029 & 587609 $ (1409609} % 4,551,029 4 1249627

A summary of changes in the Business type long-term debt follows:

General Long-term General Long-term  Current
, Debt July 1, 2007  Increases Decreases DebtJune 30,2008  Porticn
i BY TYPE OF DEBT
Finance Contract % 888,738 % - § (59,558) 829,080 §$ 47,457
Capital Leases 166,354 - (68,569) 97,785 61,955
Campensated Ahbsences 36,091 33,801 {31,617 38,275 33,801

$ 1,091,183 £ 33,801 § (159,844) $ 965,140 3§ 143,213

b. Changes in Lc:-ng-Term Liabil ties

Compensated absences have been liquidated in the,Géneral Fund as follows:

Balanee Balance

July 1, 2007 Earnet Used June 30, 2008
General Fund .

General Govarnment s 113,727 3 73637 $ 71,399 % 115,965
Public Safety 195,784 129,684 127,438 198,030
! Public Works/Transportation 51,265 45,783 34,610 62,438
Environmental Protection 30,756 26,079 26,743 3Q,092
$ 391532 § 275183 $ 260,190 3% 406,525
Proprietary Fund % 36,051 ¢ 33801 $§ 31617 ¢ 38,275
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A summary of General government debt service obligations is as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest
2009 $ G974,444 ¢ 259997
2010 . 801,536 205,810
2011 565,174 158,837
2012 - 375,171 127,934
2013 327,902 102,268
2014 - 2018 : 1,003,230 150,693
2019 - 2022 92 047 3,707
Total $ 4,144 504 4 1049245

A summary of Business-type debt service obligations is as follows;

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest
2009 $ 109,412 § 35435
2010 : 76,247 31,391
2011 749,163 28,475
2012 82,192 25,447
2013 B 85,335 22,303
2014 - 2018 404,121 65,252
2019 - 2022 90,394 3481
Total $ 926,864 $ 211,784

Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases in Enterprise Funds is included in depreciation. At
June 30, 2008 the Town of Nags Head, North Carolina, has a legal debt margin of $238,903,353.

7. Operating Leases

The Town entered into an operating lease for the lease of slx coplers effective November 19, 2004 for a
period of 60 months. The lease calls for minimum monthly rental payments and per copy maintenance
charges based on actual usage.

Total minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

2009 t 6,808
2010 2,269
Total $ 9,077

48




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the total amount expended by the Town under the above operating
lease was $8,432 including both minimum monthly rentals and.per copy charges.

Under a separate lease agreement effective August 30, 2003, the Town leases one copier for a period of
60 months in the amount of $213 per month plus monthly copy charges of $115 per month which includes
up to 11,500 copies. Copies in excess of that amount are additional.

Total minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

2009 3984
Total - $984

During the vear ended June 30, 2008, the total amount experided by the Town under the above operating
lease was $3,863 including both minimum monthly rentals and overage per copy charges.

The Town assisted the Outer Banks Family YMCA in obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired title to the YMCA property and barrowed funds
from the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The terms of the loan call for varying quarterly
principal payments over fifteen years with Interest determined quarterly as 65% of London Interbank
Offering Rate (LIBOR) pius 1.14% per annum. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease the
property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no
financial responsibility beyond lease payments. The total payments received under this operating lease for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were $346,354 and the payments made were $281,000 in principal
and $65,354 in-interest. '

8. Interfund Balances and Activity

The balance sheet for Government Funds shows a llability in the General Fund of $141,627 and a
carresponding receivable in the Capital Reserve Fund. The original advance amount of $438,481
represents reimbursement of funds collected in the Capital Reserve Fund originally intended to offset the
cost of the municipal complex. Instead these funds were used to pay off the higher inferest rate Fire
Station debt, This amount is to be paid back from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund with fire
facility fee revenues. The amounts and timing of the repayments will be determined by availability of
collected fees and decided by the Board of Commissioners. During the current year, repayment was made
in the amount of $14,921.

The balance sheet for the Government Funds shows an asset in the Genera! Fund of $10,567 and a
corresponding payable in the Beach and Sound Access Project Fund. These furwds were used for
construction costs for access projects and will be reimbursed by grant funds for the project casts when
received.
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Transfers toffrom other funds for the year ended June 30, 2008 consisted of the foilowing:

From the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund % 096,892.00
for future capital purchases
From the Capital Reserve Fund to the General Fund 143,273.00
for current year capital purchases
Total . $ 240,165.00

9. On-Behalf of Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Town has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as a revenue and an expenditure of $9,453 for the 38 volunteer firamean
who perform fire fighting duties for the Town’s fire department. The volunteers and employees elected to
be members of the Firemen and Rescue Sgquad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan
is funded by a $10 monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and a State
appropriation,

IV. Joint Ventures

The Town and the members of the Town’s fire department each appoint two members to the five-member
lecal board of trustees for the Firemen’s Relief Fund. The State Insurance Commissioner appoints one
. additional member to the local board of trustees. The Firemen's Relief Fund is funded by a portion of the
fire and fightening insurance prerniums that insurers remit to the State. The State passes these moneys to
the Jacal board of the Firémen's Relief Fund. The funds are used to assist fire fighters In various ways.
The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity has been
reflected in the financiai statements at June 30, 2008, The Firemen’s Relief Fund does not issue separate
audited financial statements, Instead, the local board of trustees files an annual financial report with the
State Firemen's Association. This report can be obtained from the Association at 323 West Jones Street,
Suite 401, Raleigh, North Carclina, 27603,

V. Summary Disclosure of Commitments and Contingencies

A. Federal and State Assisted Programs

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain _costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements, Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.
Managemnent believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

B. Jennette’s Pier

During the year ending June 30, 2003 the Town agreed conceptually to participate in the acqguisition by
The North Carclina Aquarlum Soclety of the Jennette’s Pler property by making a one time contribution of
$300,000, based on a mutually agreed to Memorandum of Understanding between and ameng varicus
agencies of North Carolina State Government, Dare County and The Town of Nags Head. This was
recorded as a payable at that time. As of October 7, 2005 a Memorandum of Understanding was entered
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into between The Town, Dare County, the North Carolina Aquarium Society, The North Carolina
Aquariums, and the Clean Water Management Trust and payment of the $303,000 was made to Clean
Water Management Trust at that time. The transfer of this property from the North Carolina Aguarium
Saciety to the North Carolina Aquarlums is anticipated to take place in the fall of 2007, Design plans for
the renovation of the property are complete and construction could begin as early as the winter of 2008
with completion by the fall of 2010.

C. Municipal Waste Management Agreement

On December 23, 1993, the Town entered into a Municipal Waste Management Agreement with Dare
County, a member of the Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Authority, for disposal of solid waste. The
contract extends for twenty years. Charges are based on the Town's actual tonnage of solid waste; the
rate in effect in the 2007-2008 year was $62.64 per ton.

D. Volunteer Fire Department Agreement

The Board of Commissioners maintains an agreement with the Nags Head Volunteer Fire Department
(NHVFD) that calls for incentive pay based on an individual members qualifications and call response.
Billing for the incentive is based on the twelve-month period of November through October each year.
Under the agreement, it Is the obligation of NHVFD to provide an accurate accounting of the incentive
earned at various intervals during the year including the Town’s fiscal year end. The amount expended
under this agreement in the current fiscal year was $8,095. The method of calculation of incentive pay
was amended by the Board of Cammissioners during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 as was the
twelve month period for calculation to coincide with the Town's fiscal year from July through june. The
amount expended under this agreement for the full year ending June 30, 2008 was $7,520 plus an
additional $575 In related FICA.

E. Intangible Water Rights

The Town entered into an agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil Hills to construct a
reverse osmosis (R.0.) water desalination plant. Under this agreement, the Town agrees to fund the
capital cost of the R.Q, project on a pro rata basis as related to the water capacities allocated to each of
the three parties. The Town's total original cost was 53,614,000, Subsequent costs of $589,619 were
incurred for the Town's share of additional projects including well field expansions. The Town has the
right to water produced from the R.O. plant. Presently, the Town's share is 1,000,000 gallons per day.

The intangible water rights are being amortized over 40 years, This time period corresponds to the
estimated useful life of the R.O. water desalination plant. At June 30, 2008, accumulated amortization

totaled $1,911,242,

On August 21, 1996, the Town approved a revised agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil
Hills which allocates three million five hundred thousand gallons per day of water from the system
capacity, inclusive of expansions. Nags Head will bear all costs and expenses associated with expansions
requested or required by the Town, This agreement was signed on October 4, 19596,

F. Fresh Pond Operations
As part of the agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil Hills, the Town of Nags Head

operates the Fresh Pand surface water facility for the regional system. The terms of the agreement require
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the Town to provide an annual accounting to the Regional Water System and to settle any difference in
water revenues and expenses. Pursuant to the Regional Water System agreement, Fresh Pond Capital as
of June 1996 is to be used far capital expenditures of Fresh Pond. After this amount is exhausted, Dare
County, Kill Devil Hills and the Town will share in capital expenditures evenly. . All funds previously set
aside for capital expenditures under this agreement have been expended as of June 30, 2008. In the case
of capital expenditures in excess of $100,000, each entity must agree to fund their share or accept a
reduction in their aliocation from the Fresh Pond water supply. During the fiscal year ending June 30,2008
the Town received $246,739 from the Regional Water System in reimbursement of excess operating costs
from the prior fiscal year and an additional $51,354 from both Dare County and Kill Devil Hills for thelr
share of Fresh Pond capital expenditures. '

G. Water Impact Fees

The Town entered into a letter of understanding with the Ammons-Dare Corporation (its successors and
assigns) for the provision of water to the Village of Nags Head Development. The Town guarantees 1,000
water consumption units {(WCU) will be available for the development. Ammons-Dare Corporation has
agreed to pay an impact fee of $2,000 per WCU in advance in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit in
the amount of $2,000,000. As of June 30, 2008, draws in the amount of $2,000,000 have been made by
the Town on this letter of credit, and Ammons-Dare Corporation has utilized 692 WCU's which are
guaranteed by the Town and are valued at $1,384,000. The Town reimbursed Ammons-Dare Corporation
for 100 unused WCU's in the amount of $200,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992, 50 unused
WCU's in the amount of $10G,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1993, 15 units in the amount of
$30,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995, and 31 units In the amount of $62,000 in the year
ended June 30, 1996. The remaining 112 WCU's in the amount of $224,000 represent the balance due
under the letter of understanding and are included in the Water Fund balance sheet as unearned revenue.
Should any of the remaining WCU's be unused, the Town agrees to reimburse Ammons-Dare Corporation,
its successors and assigns, at any time after September 4, 1991,

H. Facility Fees

The Town enacted a Facility Fee ordinance on July 3, 1989, Facility fees are imposed on new development
or construction requiring a building permit. These fees will be used to fund capital expenditures
associated with increased Police, Fire, Administration, and Solid Waste Collection Services necessitated by
new development. A fee for Recreation Facilities was added effective January 1, 2000. The facility fees are
deposited n a separate interest-bearing account. The interest earned shall be used solely for purposes
specified in the account.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the following Facility Fee Revenue (including interest) was collected in
the General Fund: '

Administraticn $ 28,606.00
Fire 12,856.00
Police 24,638.00
Sanitation 11,786.00
Recreation 18,005.50

Total $ 96,851.00
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Facility fees are to be spent for capital expenditures within ten years of coliection of the fees. In the event
that the funds are unexpended, the Town is obligated to refund the fees to the eligible property owner
after the ten-year period expires.

At June 30, 2008, the facility fees were transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund where they will remain
until funds are needed for appropriate capital expenditures, '

During the year ended June 30, 2008, administration facility fees in the amount of $31,500 and police
facility feas in the amount of $12,500 were used toward the municipal complex debt. Palice facility fees of
11,533 were used for a portion of new police vehicle debt and $14,594 used for the purchase of a mobile
sign for public safety information. Fire facllity fees of $14,921 were used toward the interfund loan used
to satisfy the previous fire station debt. There was $12,000 in sanitation facility fees used toward the debt
for new equipment. Lastly, there was no recreation facllty fees used during the year ended June 30,
2008,

As of June 30, 2008, the following balances of facility fees remained, and are included in the Capital
Reserve Fund:

Administration $ 140,654
Fire 25,454
Police 172,127
Sanitaticn 14,950
Recreation 38,608

Total i 395393

The following schedule summarizes facility fees collected and used from the inception of the fees to date:

Facility Fees Collected (Inclusive of interest):

Admin, Fire Police Sanitation  Recreation Total
FY 89-90 $ 29,114 $ 19035 ¢ 7179 $ 15548 % - 3 71,876
FY 90-91 17,704 15,761 6,293 10,194 - 49,952
FY 91-92 24,115 27,159 11,204 15,236 - 77,714
FY 92-93 24,392 16,237 6,509 . 12,473 - 59,611
FY 93-94 23,758 24,740 10,317 12,476 - 71,291
FY 94-95 25,965 27,202 11,743 17,074 - 81,584
FY 95-95 28,330 28,125 12,570 19,832 - 88,857
FY 96-97 22,811 11,695 5,322 9,682 - 49,514
EY 97-98 34,009 15,243 15,749 10,406 - 75,407
FY 98-99 45,061 23,584 28,535 19,367 - 116,547
Fr 99-00 45,953 31,970 43,067 24,4561 14473 155,924
FY 00-01 64,457 66,526 102,658 47,078 41,911 322,630
FY 01-02 64,532 34,245 43,293 30,466 42,338 214,874
Fy 02-03 63,155 356,824 50,102 33,571 38,719 222,381
FY 03-04 39,368 16,606 18,221 10,109 28,633 112,937
FY §4-05 33,300 45,226 75,807 23,782 23,479 201,594
FY 05-06 24,395 14,920 20,474 13,677 23,030 96,496
FY 06-07 15,490 16,598 27,048 14,878 10,935 84,945
FY 07-08 - 28,605 12,856 24,638 11,786 19,005 96,891

Total § 654,515 § 484,566 $ 520,729 $ 353,096 § 242,523 $ 2,255,429
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Facility Fees Used:
Admin, Fire Palice Sanitation  Recreation Total

FY 89-90 $ - % - ¢ - % - 3 - % -
FY 50-91 - - - - - -
FY 51-92 - 30,000 - 20,000 - 50,000
Fy 92-93 - - 6,520 - 6,520
FY 93-54 - 26,247 4,097 - 30,344
Fy 94-95 : - 26,247 4,097 . - 30,344
FY 95%-96 - 75,765 - - - 75,765
FY 55-97 160,000 - 40,000 5,000 - 205,000
FY 97-98 10,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 20,000
FY 98-99 35,000 - 15,120 - - 51,120
© FY 99-00 31,500 26,942 28,434 18,864 - 105,740
FY 00-01 31,500 23,584 13,500 19,818 7,065 95,467
FY 01-02 31,500 31,970 48,227 71,677 44,000 227,374
FY 02-03 31,500 66,526 13,500 36,716 25,000 173,242
F¥ 03-04 56,861 40,591 60,601 50,999 42,000 251,052
FY 04-05 - 31,500 30,667 18,648 52,356 25,000 158,171
FY 05-06 31,500 16,427 25,198 36,716 52,000 161,841
FY 06-07 31,500 45,225 25,033 9,000 8,850 119,608
FY 07-08 31,500 14,921 . 39,627 12,000 - S8,048
Total $ 513861 $ 455,112 4 348,602 $ 338,146 $ 203,915 3 1,859,635
Remaining 140,654 29,454 172,127 14,950 38,608 355,753

I. Hurricane Recovery

The Town of Nags Head entered into agreements to complete infrastructure repairs/replacements
necessitated by Hurricane Isabel in September 2003. As of June 30, 2008, all contracts for the emergency
berm project, the road repair project and the beach emergency berm project had been completed and
reimbursement had been received including $282,318 for the costs of sprigging the emergency berm. This
reimbursement was initially denied by FEMA and subsequently appealed by the Town. The costs were
reported as expenditures in the year incurred and no receivable or revenue had been recorded by the
Town related to reimbursement of these costs prior to revenue recorded in the current fiscal year upon
receipt of the funds.

1. Beach Nourishment

On November 2, 2005, the Town adopted a capital project ordinance for Beach Nourishment with an
estimated cost of $27,697,850 to be funded by bond proceeds in the amount of $26,997,850 and a
contribution from the General Fund in the amaunt of $700,000. This project ordinance was amended on
December 20, 2006 to increase the total estimated costs of the project to $32,700,000 with $24,000,000
funded by bond proceeds, $8,000,000 funded by contribution from Dare County, and the remaining
$700,000 funded by a transfer from the General Fund. The initial phase of that project is a contract for
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the engineering and construction oversight in the amount of $1,592,500. The contract allows for
cancellation at any time by either party upon payment of costs incurred through the date of cancellation.
The bond referendum held during April 2007 was not approved by all districts as required for the issuance
of bonds to fund the project. 1t is the intent of the Board to continue through completion of the permitting
process with costs incurred through that date funded by the transfer from the General Fund. The total
amount expended under this contract at June 30, 2006 was $200,347. During the year ended June 34,
2007, an additional $206,117 was expended under this contract, in addition to, $21,701 in attorneys fees
related to the project and the referendum. During the year ended June 30, 2008 an additional $60,535
was expended under this contract. Total costs incurred through June 30, 2008 include $467,000 far
engineering and construction aversight and $21,701 in attorneys’ fees.

K. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events

On September 11, 2008 the Town entered into a contract for the purchase of land with a purchase cast of
$1,065,000 plus related closing costs. An additional $792,165 of land valuation is being donated to the
TFown by the seller of the property,” The Town has received approved grant funding to be used towards
the acquisition costs in the amount of $500,000 from North Carolina Parks and Recreation Trust Fund and
from North Carolina Coastal Management in the amount of $568,500. Any costs in excess of the grant
funding will be funded from Undesignated Fund Balance. Closing for the property acquisition was October
2, 2008 and grant funding is anticipated to be received prior to the end of fiscal year 2008-20065.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule A-1

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

12/31/1598
12/31/1999
12/31/2000
12/31/2001
12/31/2002
12/31/2003
12/31/2004
12/3172005
12/31/2008
12/31/2007

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

62,331
71,819
88,268
50,229
90,891

151,541

184,675

217,715

256,998

241,424

Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)
=Projected Unit
Credit
—{b)

83,495

81,751
145,789
178,317
182,538
212,074
250,217
241,698
301,636
357,343

Unfunded
AAL Funded  Covered
(UAAL) - Ratio Payroll
{b-a) {a/b} {c)

21,164 74.65% 656,523
9,932 87.85% 579,505
57,521 60.55% 673,137
88,088 50.60% 771,135
91,647 49.79% 815,534
60,533 71.46% 915,380
65,542 73.81% 1,026,938
23,083 90.08% 1,021,727
44,638 85.20% 1,058,590
115,919 67.56% 1,091,569

UAAL as a
%% of Covered
Payroll

[(b-a)/c]

3.22%
1.71%
8.55%
11.42%
11.24%
6.61%
6,38%
2.35%
4.22%
10.62%

* Valuations beginning December 31, 2000 reflect a change in actuarial assumplions
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Schedule A-2
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Requirad Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
1998 7,398 82.62%
1999 8,503 74.46%
2000 10,300 74.65%
2001 . 8,148 87.85%
2002 15,773 60.55%
2003 18,854 50.60%
2004 17,883 45.79%
2005 7,225 71.46%
2006 (5,653) 73.81%
2007 -{13,806) 90.08%
2008 {34,256} 85.20%

Noteas to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates
indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial

valuation follows.

Valuation date 12/31/2007

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method o Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amartization period 23 years

Asset valuation methed Market value

Actuarlal assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25%
Projected salary increases * 4.5-12.3%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-flving adjustments N/A
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_ TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES

Ad Valorem Taxes:
Current year

Prior year

DMV current year
DMV prior year

Penalties and interest
Total

Other Taxes and Licenses:
Qccupancy tax

Land Transfer tax

Local governmental sales tax
1/2% sales tax revenue
Privilege licenses

Mixed beverage tax

Privilege license penalties

Total

Intergovernmental Revenues:
Unrestricted:

Utility Franchise tax
Telecommunications fax

Video pragramming tax/franchiese fees

Bear and wine
ABC revenue

Total

Restricted:
FEMA Reimbursement

Contributions from governmental units

State Street Aid allocation
Governor's Highway Grant
Crug Fund revenye

NC DOT Enhancement Grant

CAMA Reimbursement

Total

Total Intergovernmental Revenues

Budget Actual

$ 4,446,445
699
53,997

233
11017

e ——

¢ 4,452,415 4,512 351

$

Schedule 1
Page 1 of 11

Variance
Owver

{Under}

59,576

1,863,955
516,826
866,525
718,971

38,807
38,077
236

4,160,000 __ 4,043,397

(116,603)

291,852
56,290
184,786
14,432

14,607

453,000 561,967

108,967

282,318
63,546
147,771
8,399
1,487
93,994

6,760

349,159 604,275

' 255,116

802,159 1,166,242

364,083
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Parmits and Fees:

Buiiding permits

Facility fees

Inspection and review fees
Beach driving permits
CAMA permits

Motor vehicle licenses

Total

Special Assessments:
Pond Island Project

Total

Sales and Services:
Court costs and fees

Total

Investment Earnings

Other Revenues:

YMCA Rents

Sale of materials
Miscellaneous

Sale of assets

Damage recovery

Civii Penalties

Contributions to Police, Fire &

Rescue Benevolent Fund
Total
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General Government;

Governing Body:

Fees paid to elected officials

FICA expense

Contracted services

Contracted services - beach nourishment
Capital outlay, art

59

Budget Actual

201,371

96,892 .

35,019
11,333
14,600

818

425,650 360,033

Schedule 1
Page 20f 11

Variance
Qver

{Undear}

(65,617}

499

500 499

(1)

4,519

8,000 4,519

(3,481)

472,500 455,040

(17,460)

407,818
46,239
48,495
20,141
23,926

6,405

10,095

674,965 563,119

(111,846)

10,596,189 11,105,240

109,051

31,443
2,405
34,143
(400)
700




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Department supplies and materials
Special evants

. Dues and subscriptions

. Printing

Travel

. Telephone

Training

Equipment rental -

Emplayee incentive

Contribution to YMCA
Contribution t¢ Nags Head Woods

Contributions, miscellanaous
Total

Special Frojects:
YMCA principal passthrough
YMCA intarest passthrough

Total

Administration:

Salaries and wages

FiCA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401{k) account
Contracted services
Travel

Advertising
Depaitmental supplies
Dues and subscriptions
Equipment rental
Telephone

Employee training
Postage

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Career development
Professional fees

Other supplies
Reimbursement from Water Fund

Capital Outlay, other

Total

60

Budget

160,897

Actual

6,476
1,167
4,835
3,301
5,528

422
1,005
381
500
5,000
14,000
160

111,006

Schedule 1
Page 3 of 11

Yariance
Over

{Under)

49,891

471,170

281,000

65,354

346,354

124,816

393,418

242,186
17,077
37,842

4,746
11,665
5,445
58,756
2,968
794
4,713
2,965
1,684
3,863
1,210
4,624
1,080
1,078
26
7,106
(58,334)
9,850

361,344

32,074




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Administrative Services:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance expense
Retirement

401(k) account

Unemployment expense
Insurance

Contracted services

Employee training

Professional services
Departmental supplies and materials
Postage

Telephone

Travel

Other supplies

Equipment rental

Printing

Repairs and mainterance, equipment
Carear development

Wellness pragram

Parsonnel Committee

Special contracted services

Dues and subscriptions

Purchases for resale

Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Automotive supplies
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interast
Total

Information Technology:
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401(k} account

Contracted services
Contracted services, GIS
Contracted services, website
Contracted services, annual contracts
Professional services
Departmental supplies

61

Budget

922,818

Actual

326,250
23,796
44 467
15,262

9,401
15,064

262,338

14,016

7,005
28,321
11,807
10,718
3,163
5,634
5,862
5,194
9,875
598
1,067
1,001
1,797
822
1,911
1,433
420
831
1,682

(176,327)

193,572
32,314

—_——r

859,689

Schedule 1
Paged of 11

Variance
Over

{Under}

63,129

97,688
7,303
13,809
4,757
2,931
12,687
540
688
39,151
71
7,149




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Travel

Advertising

Telephone .

Pastage

Career development, other
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Other supplies

Internet costs

Empleyee training

Computer training

Equipment rental

Dues and subscriptions
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital cutlay, other

Capital outlay, equipment
Total

Planning and Development:
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retivee
Retirement

401(k} account

Planning board, board of adjustment
Contracted services

Professional services
Departmental supplies

Travel

Advertising

Telephone

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Other supplies

Uniforms

Automotive supplies

Employee training

Career development, other
Equipment rental

Dues and subscriptions

Printing .

Reimbursement from Water Fund
Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

a2

Budget

298,940

Actual

345
174
4,182
36
651
1,862
13,821
9,178
1,439
4,150
14,833
140

(15,766)
7,120

_ 8283

237,252

Schedule 1
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Varlance
Over

{Under}

61,688

854,085

601,370
44,518
72,460

3,694
29,287
18,041

9,470

29
12,566
14,269

6,150

5,138

5,737

2,089

1,217

700

3,082

1,125

5,764

3,580

379
1,556
2,569
225

(77,162)

7,602

275

775,730

78,355




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Legal Services:
Professional services
Reimbursement from Water Fund

Total
Total General Government

Public Safety:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401{k} account

Autemotive supplies

Departmental supplies

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Repalrs and maintenance, equipment
Telephone

Other supplies

Uniforms

Career development

Equipment rental

Travel

Professional services

Employee training

Special investigations

Repairs and maintenance, range
Pastage

Dues and subscriptions

Contracted services

Grant, Governor's Highway Safety
Reimbursement from Wate Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Capital outlay, Governor's Crime Commission
Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest
Total

Drug Forfeiture:
Employee training

Total

Budget  Actual

86,190
(878)

Schedule 1
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Yariance
Qver

{linder)

210

85522 _ 85312
3,186,850 2,776,687

410,163

1,087,096
80,396
147 477
2,329
52,604
51,935
63,408
37,677
21,059
20,388
16,060
1,770
13,266
4,373
7,778
6,104
9,201
3,837
3,000
2,828
1,067
1,377
258
2,674
(13,070)
147,947
8,969
105,028

5,829

2,095,223 1,892,665

202,558

3,020

3,020 3,020




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Fire Department:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance
Refirement expense
401(k) account
Departmental supplies
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Uniforms

Repairs and maintenancea, equipment
Automotive supplies
Talephone

Emplayee training

OSHA Compliance

Career development
Travel

Safety training

Dther supplies

Equipment rental

Dues and subscriptions
Professional services
Postage

Contracted Services
Printing

Advertising

Capital outlay, equipment
Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, Interst

Total

Volunteer Fire:
Incentive pay

FICA expense

Uniforms

Dues and subscriptions
Training o
Travel

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Professional services
Retirement

Department supplies

Total

64

Budget

2,659,501

Actual

1,228,364
89,397
232,196
62,106
36,903
73,064
29,109
16,392
14,727
18,735
5,331
4,668
3,792
8,872
2,707
11,207
2,710
1,358
2,164
11,135
609
1,812
543

168
498,355
160,611

59,851

2,576,886
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Variance
Ower

(Under)

82,615

38,333

6,719
514
3,851
364
335
1,224
211
25
6,451
10,438
9,003

39,135

(802)




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 1
Page Bof 11

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Ocean Rescue:
Salaries and wages
FICA expense

Group insurance
Retirement expense
401(k) account
Departmental supplies
Uniforms

Automotive supplies

Budget Actual

362,126

Repairs and maintenance, equipment

Travel

Repalrs and maintenance, vehicles

Professional fees
Telephone
Employee training
Printing

Dues and subscriptions

Advertising
Postage

Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest
Total

Animal Control:
Salaries and wages
FICA expense

Group insurance
Retirement

401({k) account
Automotive supplies
Departmental supplies

337

19,321
5,182
2,538
1,563

28,645

11,853

10,080
6,016
4,903
2,011
2,376
1,397

585
884
1,100
584
70
9,323

531,375 470,854

Variance
Cver -

fUnder)

60,481

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles

Professional fees
Equipment rental
Travel
Telephone
Uniforms

Total

Total Public Safety

73,397

42,791
3,171
8,156
2,080
2,139
1,834

663
375
200
144
123
980
630

64,286

9,111

5,400,849 5,046,886

353,963
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Envirenmental Protection:
Sanitation:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance
Retirement

401 (k) account

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Automotive supplies
Department supplles
Uniforms

Contracted services
Recycling

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Professional Fees

Travel

Employea training

Dues and subscriptions
Capital outlay, equipment
Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, interast

Total

Solid Waste:
Tipping fees

Tatal

Total Environmental Pratection

Public Works:
Administration:
Salaries and wages
FICA expense

Group insurance
Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401{k) account
Contracted services
Purchase for resale
Telephone
Departmental supplies
Advertising

Travel

Equipment rental
Automotive supplies

66

447,495
32,847
51,577
20,889
12,868

103,758

119,711
31,747

5,523
18,900
3,993
4,033
134

368
1,274
379
473,109
332,643

24,994

1,749,647 1,730,242

Schedule 1
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Variance
Owver

{Under)

19,405

577,506

605,302 577,506

27,796

2,354,949 2,307,748

47,201

253,928
18,911
31,005
15,270
12,296

7,575
1,642
36,689
9,695
8,216
183
3,214
520
5,311




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Employee training

Career development

Dues and subscriptions

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Uniforms

Professional fees

Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

Public Facilities Maintenance:
Salaries and wages

FICA expanse

Group Insurance

Group insurance, retiree
Retirement

401(k) account

Special Projects

Repairs and maintenance, facilitles
Utilities

Contracted services

Department supplies

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Signs

Automcotive supplies

Repairs and maintenance, other
Career development

Other supplies

Professional services

Uniforms

Repairs and malntenance, vehicles
Employee training

Travel

Street supplies

Dues and subscriptions
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outiay, Multi use path
Capital outlay, fand

Capital outiay, equipment
Capital outlay, other Powell Bill
Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interast

Total

&7

Budget Artual

833
853
702
556
550
983
924
{124,067}
25,304
16,430
250

360,363 327,813

Schedule 1
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Variance
Owver

{Under)

32,550

339,952
24,829
86,578

2,523
15,984
9,846
24,953
24,879

142,662
49,283
22,992
26,282
16,166
21,919
17,642

575
12,592
1,101
5,292
8,165
2,288
(15)
12,747
50
(40,672)
107,339
2,260
20,035

186,365

42 811

2,412

1,354,465 1,189,835

164,630




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 1
Page 11 of 11

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Maintenance Garage:

Salaries and wages

FICA account

Group insurance

Group insurance, retiree
Retirement

401(k) account

Other supplies

Departmenta! supplies

Uniforms

Contracted services

Automotive supplies

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Employee training

Career development

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Travel '
Advertising

Professional fees

Dues and subscriptions
Reimbursement from Water Fund

Total

Total Public Works
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Revenues Qver {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from capital lease

Transfers from Capital Projects Funds (Net)

Appropriated Fund Balance

Other financing sources {uses), net

Revenues and COther Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Wses

FUND BALANCE, beginning

FUND BALANCE, ending

63

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under}
169,853
12,759
31,531
5,111
8,277
5,099
3,B58
15,290
2,910
313
1,358
254
603
575
655
42
86
450
(8,724)
268,588 255,400 13,188
1,983 416 1,773,048 210,368
125,000 - 125,000
13,051,064 11,904,369 1,146,695
(2,054,875) {799,129) 1,255,746
312,426 312,426 -
73,679 4p,381 (27,298)
1,668,770 - (1,668, 7/0}
2,054,875 358,807 (1,696,068}
$ - (440,322) 3 (440,322)

8,545,933

—_—

$ 9,505,611




Schedule 2

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

. Beach Nourishment Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Investrnent Earnings
Restricted intergovernmental

Tatal revenues

Expenditures
Capltal Construction Oversight
Pumping Costs
Mobllization
Contingency
Other Costs

Total Expend|turas
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financlng sources {uses):
Bond Procesds issued
Transfers from other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, beglnning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Actual Varlance
Project Prigr Currenk Total o Over
Authgrization Years Year Date {(Under)

- % 17951 ¢ 10545 % 28496 % 28,456
8,000,000 - - - (8,000,000}
8,000,000 17,551 10,545 28,450 (7,971,504
1,592,500 406,464 60,535 466,999 1,125,501
28,002,150 - - - 28,002,150
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000

205,350 - - - 905,330

700,000 21,701 - 21,701 578,299
32,700,000 428,165 60,535 ' 488,700 32,211,300
{24,700,000) {410.214) {49,950} (460,204) 24,239,756
24,000,000 - - - 24,000,600

700,000 700,000 - 700,000 -
24,700,000 700,000 - 700,000 (24,000,000)
$ - & 289786
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Beach and Sound Accesses Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental

Schedule 3

Actual Variance
Project ‘Prior Current Total to Over
Authorization ~ Years Year Date (Under)

$ 305858 $ 69,630 $ 77,982 ¢ 147,612 § (150,246)

Total revenues 306,858 69,630 77,982 147,612 {159,246)
Expenditures
Baltic Street Access 153,208 4,146 6,422 10,568 142,640
June Street Access 51,000 44,006 5,173 49,179 1,821
Indigo Street Acress 20,000 40,406 4,736 45,142 4,858
Bittern Streat Access 26,100 26,720 23 26,743 (643)
Town Hall Access 35,400 35,398 - 35,398 2
Total Expenditures 315,708 150,676 16,354 167,030 148,678
Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,850)  (B1,045) 51,628 (19,418) {10,568)
Other finandng sources {uses):
Transfer from Capital Reserve Fund 8,850 8,850 - 8,850 -
Appropriated fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses) 8,850 8,850 - 8,850 -
Revenues and other sources
over expenditures 4 - % (72.196) $ 61,628 4 (10,568) § (10,568}
Fund balance, beginning of year (72,196)
Fund balance, end of year $ (10,568}

KL}




REVENUES

Operating Revenues;
Water sales

Contribution to Fresh Pond

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Charges to other gevernmental units, Dare County

Rents
Tap and connection fees

Late payment penaitles and interest

Water cutoff tag fees
Sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Total

Non-Gperating Revenues:

Interest earmed on investments

Impact fees

Decrease in prepaid impact fees

Total
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Administration:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retirees
Retirement expense
401(k) account

Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses

Contracted services
Postage

Supplies and materals
Employee training
Career Development
Trave!

)

Budget Actual

Schedule 4
Page 1 of 5

Variance
Over
(Under)

$ 2,088,244
349,447
65,255

77,208

12,135

21,961

8,735

2,960

2,249

2,712,547 2,628,194

$

(84,353)

176,051
213,000
2,000

180,000 391,051

2,892,547 3,019,245

211,051

126,698

58,639
4,023
19,430
642
2,807
1,729
54,444
1,880
8,268
3,146
1,110
475
470




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Schedule 4
Page 2of 5

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
Total Administration 166,707 157,063 9,644
Septic Health:
Salaries and wages . 46,651
FICA expense 3,334
Group insurance 8,191
Retirement 2,223
401{k) account 1,370
Contracted services 69,769
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses 100,408
Inspection rebates 18,312
Pumping credits 2,280
Postage 1,244
Travel 757
Telephone 506
Printing 1,610
Automotive supplies 406
Career Development 1,175
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles 15
Departmental supplies 2,483
Total Septic Health 280,678 261,734 18,944
Operations:
Salaries and wages 183,566
FICA expense 13,003
Group insurance 44475
Retlrement 8,971
401(k) account 5,527
Purchases for resale 737,590
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses 121,356
Insurance 39,081
Utilities 42,497
Contracted services 48,108
Departmental supplies 28,687
Professional fees 6,002
Other supplies 4,893
Repairs and maintenance, equipment 22,100
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Postage

Teiephone

Repairs and maintenance, buildings
Unifgrms

Dues and subscriptions

Equlpment rental

Printing

Autamotive suppiies

Empioyee training

Travel '

Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles

Total Operations

Fresh Pond Operations:

Salarles and wages

FICA expense

Group Insurance

Ratirement

401(k) account . _
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Other supplies and materials
Insurance

Cantracted services

Professional services

Departmental supplies

Uillties

Repalrs and maintenance, buiiding
Telephone _

Employee training

Travel

Printing

Dues and subscriptions

Postage

Total Fresh Pond Operations
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Budget Actual

Schedule 4
Page 3 of 5

Variance
Over
{Under}

1,975
4412
4,623
3,073
2,183
901
1,921
5,111
729
329
73
502

1,396,155 1,331,688

64,467

17,054
1,199
3,542

827
510
101,932
15,319

37,085
7,259

26,457

16,108

17,590
1,595
8,114

92
205
1,447
145
100
425

297,627 257,005

40,622




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 4
Page 4 of 5

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)

Operations Distribution:
Salaries and wages 246,162
FICA expense 17,194
Group insurance 66,730
Retireament 11,970
401(k) account 7,374
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses 136,860
Contracted services 780
Other supplies 13,064
Repairs and maintenance, other 39,102
Insurance 5,727
Automobile supplles 8,914
Departmental supplles 8,570
Unifarms _ 4,084
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles 1,757
Telephone 1,971
Dues and subscriptions 1,086
Advertising 404
Repairs and maintenance, equipmeant 3,454
Travel 1,301
Employee training 434
Career Development 1,097
Professsional fees 251
Building/equipment rantal 203 .
Total Operations Distribution 588,015 578,529 5,486
Budgetary Appropriations:
Appropriated Retalned Earnings {450,745) -
Interest 37,360 37,302
Debt principal 117,153 117,153
Septic Health Loans 15,000 7,550
Principal repayments Septic Health Loans (10,000) (8,087)
Increase (decrease) in:

Inventory - 12,431
{Increase) decrease in;

Compensated absences - (2,184}
Capital outiay:

5,221

Land 5,222

rx



Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 4
Paga S of 5

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under}
Other 399,375 208,784

Contingency 50,000 -

Capita! Improvements Plan

Total Budgetary Appropriations 163,365 378,170 (214,805)
Total Expenditures v 2,892,547 2,964,189 (71,642)
Revenues Over Expenditures % - % 55,056 % (55,056)
RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS

Revenues over expenditures 55,056 (1,325,645)
Reconciling items:

Septic Health Loans 7,550

Principal repayments Septic Health Loans (8,087)

Payment of dabt principal 117,153

Increase in inventory 12,431

Capital outlay 214,005

Depreciation and amortization {398,623)

Increase in accrued vacation and comp pay (2,184)

Decrease In prepaid impact fees 2,000

Capital contributions 23,350
Change in net assets $ 22,651
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Storm Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Operating Revenues:
Storm Water Fees

Total

Nonoperating Revenues;
Interest earned on investments

Total
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Fuef
Department Supplies
Repairs and maintenancea, equipment
Professional Fees
Contracted Sarvices

Totai Expenditures
Budgetary Appropriations:
Interest

Debt Principa!
Capital Cutlay Equipment

Total Budgetary Appropriations
Total Expenditures

Revenues over Expenditures

76

Variance
Over

Budget Actual {Under)
$ 112,152 $112378 $ 226
112,152 112,378 226
10,225 10,860 635
10,225 10,860 635
122,377 123,238 . 861
2,100 1,797 303
150 65 85
7,500 5,434 2,066
6,691 4,254 2437
82,322 8,254 74,068
98,763 19,804 78,5959
2,690 2,690 -
11,074 11,074 -
9,850 9,822 28
23,614 23,586 2B
122,377 43,390 78,987
$ - % 79,848 ¢ 70,848

Schadula 5
Page lof 2




Schedule 5

Paga 2 of 2
RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS -
TQ FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
Revenues over {under} expenditures 79,848
Debt Issued
Capital Cutlay 9,822
Payment of Debt Principal 11,074
Contributions to Water Fund
Sale of Fixed Assets
Depreciation (8,665}
Change in net assets : 92 079
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Town of Nags Head, North Caralina

Nags Head Leasing

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Operating Revanues:
Other revenues

Total

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest Earned on Investments

Total
Taotal Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Other expenditures

Total Expenditures

Budgetary Appropriations
Appropriated retained earnings

Total Budgetary Appropriations

Total Expenditures

Revenues over Expenditures

Schedule 6

RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS

Ravenues over {under} expenditures

Contributions to Water Fund
Sale of Fixed Assets
Depreciation

Change in Net Assets

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
3 3 : -
- 19 19
- 19° 19
- 19 19
$ - % 19 19
19
§ 19

T8




* Fiszal Year

2007-2Q08
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2003
2001-2002
2000-2001
1999-2000
1998-1999
1997-1598

Less allowance for uncollectible
ad valorem taxes receivable

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, net

Reconcilement with revenues:
Taxes, ad valorem , General Fund
Amounts written off for tax year 97-98

DMV written off

Amounts written off <$1
Refunds paid on taxes
Less penalties and interest

i

$ 4,512,391

218
1,326

(4)

48

_(11,017)
4.502,962

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 7
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2008
Uncollected Collection Uncollected
Balance And Balance
June 30, 2007 Additions Credits Adjustments _June 30, 2008
$ - § 4423318 $ 4,500,442 ¢ 78,714 $ 1,590
1,888 358 (183} 1,347
2,242 256 {3) 1,983
2,852 15 2,837
2,922 72 2,850
1,590 31 1,559
2,036 138 1,898
1,896 39 1,857
2,675 17 2,658
1,694 491 1,203
1,104 - 1,104 - -
$ 20899 § 4423318 $ 4502062 & 78528 % 19,783
10,000
£ 9,783




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Schedula B
Analysls of Current Tax Levy
Town - Wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Tokal Levy
Property
Excluding
Town - Wide Registered  Registered
Property Total Mator Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles.
Original levy:
Property taxed at current year's rate % 2,998,050,246 0.1475 $ 4,422,128 ¢ 4,422,128 ¢ -
Penalties - 1,180 1,190 -
Total 2,998,050,246 4,423,318 4,423 318 -
Discaveries:
Current year taxes 57,349,457 84,687.01 24,203 60,424
Peralties - 24 24 -
Total 57,349,497 84,711 24,227 60,484
(4,251,309} {5,996.83) {409) = (3,587}
Tatal property valuation % 3,051,148,434
Net levy | 4,502,032 4,447,136 54,856
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2008 {1,550 (687) {903)
Current year taxes collectad 4 4500442 § 4446445 4 53,997
Current levy collection percentage 99.96% 99.98%  98.36%
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